
October 19, 2021
Regular Meeting Agenda 1 | Page

, 

COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DIRECTORS
1000 Saddle Creek Drive 
Copperopolis, CA 95228 
(209) 785-0100 –
coppervalleycsd.org

Larry Hoffman, President
Ken Albertson, Vice President

Roger Golden
Darlene DeBaldo

Scott Baker

COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

LOCATION:1001 SADDLE CREEK DRIVE, COPPEROPOLIS
October 19, 2021

2:00 PM

1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
4. CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT (Each speaker is limited to two (2) minutes) Members of the public are 
appreciated for taking the time to   attend this meeting and provide comments on matters of District business. Any member of 
the public may address the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction. This need not be related to any item on 
the agenda; however, the Board cannot act on an item unless it was noticed on the agenda

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be acted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 
these items unless a member of the Board, Staff or a member of the Public requests specific items be set aside for separate 
discussion.
a) Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for the month of 

September 2021. 
b) Approval of the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held September 21, 2021

7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS
The Board of Directors intends to consider each of the following items and may act at this meeting. Public comment is allowed 
on each individual agenda item listed below, and such comment will be considered in advance of each Board action.
a) Status update report on the engineering review, progress and inspections for the Quail 

Creek development project (District Engineer Galen Gritz)
b) Review of staffing concerns and consideration of securing consulting services to conduct 

a classification and compensation study/survey to determine if adjustments to the District 
landscape maintenance position descriptions, advancement opportunities, salaries,
benefits or other compensation are needed to attract and retain employees

8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS 
Brief reports may be provided by District staff and/or Board members as information on matters of general interest. No action 
will be taken by the Board during Reports, however items discussed may be recommended for discussion and action on a 
future agenda.
a) General Managers Report 
b) Site Managers Report

9. ADJOURNMENT 
Agenda Materials: May be viewed on the bulletin boards outside the Copper Valley Pro Shop, on the Sports Club Bulletin 
Board, in the viewing box outside the CSD main office and at the CSD Website typically three days preceding each 
meeting date. Materials will also be available at the meeting. 

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please 
contact the CVCSD Board Clerk at (209) 272-0957. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable 
arrangements to insure accessibility.

































September 21, 2021
Regular Meeting Minutes 1 | Page

, 

COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT DIRECTORS
1000 Saddle Creek Drive 
Copperopolis, CA 95228 
(209) 785-0100 –
coppervalleycsd.org

Larry Hoffman, President
Ken Albertson, Vice President

Roger Golden
Darlene DeBaldo

Scott Baker

COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

LOCATION:1001 SADDLE CREEK DRIVE, COPPEROPOLIS
September 21, 2021

2:00 PM

1. CALL TO ORDER Meeting called to order at 2:01pm
2. ROLL CALL President Hoffman, Vice President Albertson, Director DeBaldo, Director 

Golden, Director Baker, General Manager Kampa, Office Manager McCutchen, Site 
Manager Hebard

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
4. CHANGES TO ORDER OF AGENDA None 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
a) Review of monthly financial report, approval of bills and claims for the month of August 

2021. 
b) Approval of the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting held August 17, 2021 

Motion made by Director Golden to approve the consent calendar, second made by Director   
Albertson, motion passes unanimously.
7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS

a) Adoption of a Resolution approving agreement with Gritz Engineering for general 
engineering services related to District infrastructure and operations. A motion was 
made by Vice President Albertson to approve the agreement with Gritz Engineering for 
general engineering services related to the District infrastructure and operations. Second 
made by Director Golden. Motion passes unanimously. 

b) Status update report on the engineering review, progress and inspections for the Quail 
Creek development project (District Engineer Galen Gritz) Mr. Grits spoke to the Board 
and brought them up to speed on where he is at on the project. The Board and Mr Gritz 
had a question and answer discussion in an open forum.  

c) Review of financial evaluation regarding cash flow available to meet operating expenses, 
debt service and the projected costs contained in the road maintenance plan.

8. STAFF AND DIRECTOR REPORTS 
a) General Managers Report 
b) Site Managers Report

9. ADJOURNMENT Meeting adjourned at 3:47pm



TO: CVCSD Board of Directors

FROM: Peter Kampa, General Manager

DATE: October 19, 2021

SUBJECT: Item 7a) Status update report on the engineering review, progress and 
inspections for the Quail Creek development project (District 
Engineer Galen Gritz)

RECOMMENDED ACTION
This is an information only item, no action required.

BACKGROUND
Our district engineer continues to review the details of the construction plans for the 
Quail Creek development project, review related technical documentation including soils 
and compaction testing, and perform on site construction inspection. Galen will provide a 
brief update report on the status and quality of the work as well as discussing any issues 
or concerns encountered.



TO: CVCSD Board of Directors

FROM: Peter Kampa, General Manager

DATE: October 19, 2021

SUBJECT: Item 7b) Review of staffing concerns and consideration of securing 
consulting services to conduct a classification and compensation study/survey 
to determine if adjustments to the District landscape maintenance position 
descriptions, advancement opportunities, salaries, benefits or other 
compensation are needed to attract and retain employees

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff seeks Board direction on the desired work culture and potentially a Board motion to proceed with 
securing a proposal from a human resources consulting firm for the completion of a classification and 
compensation study/report in an amount not to exceed $20,000 and to begin the work immediately

BACKGROUND
Due to the manual labor nature of the job responsibilities and level of total compensation for our 
entry level and second level landscape maintenance worker positions, we have experienced a 
relatively high degree of employee turnover. Employees rarely stay with the district for a period 
of over two to three years which significantly increases our recruitment and training costs, not to 
mention lost efficiencies and impacts to other employees and service levels.  

The current pandemic, related unemployment benefit increases and stimulus money, has caused a 
shortage of employees in general especially in entry level and manual labor positions. We are 
currently two full time employees short and recently lost our part time mechanic. Although 
recent advertisements for these open positions resulted in a small number of applications, those 
called for interview either did not respond or did not show up. This trend has been becoming 
increasingly troublesome for the past year. Following conversations over the last week and 
brainstorming on how to be able to keep up with work and service demands, it was determined
that we need to move quickly with a two-step approach.

1. First our current entry level and 2nd level hourly wage is comparable to that of local 
retail stores and fast food restaurants which makes it difficult to attract applicants for our 
manual labor positions. I have authorized the advertisement for open positions using the 
hourly wage at our highest level for the position, step four. Our salary schedule for this 
year is included with this agenda item. We believe that this hourly wage is needed to 
attract applicants.



 

2. In the longer term we need to consider whether we are satisfied with randomly adjusting 
hourly rates paid and maintaining our current level of benefits even if it results in shorter 
employment tenure; or whether we seek to develop an employment model where we 
strive for attraction of solid candidates and significantly longer employee retention 
periods. Basically, the decision needs to be made whether these positions can be living 
wage for local workers, when you consider the total compensation value of wages, 
benefits, advancement opportunities, holidays, vacation and other factors. 

Another possibility discussed at length over the last week has been the option of using 
contractors to fully replace our full time positions. There are advantages to this type of model as 
you would seek to secure a contract that provided a guaranteed competency, customer service, 
level of work, reliability and cost. However, to ask for this commitment, especially in today's 
labor market environment, will most certainly increase our operating expenses. It is also unclear 
whether there are any competent local contractors that would be able to make such a 
commitment to the district. From a legal perspective we are not allowed to direct the daily work 
efforts, work quality, methods and other aspects of the work as that could put us in a position of 
improperly classifying contractors when they should be employees of the district. In today's 
contracting environment, we basically have to set the end result expectation of the work, set 
some bookend parameters and perform quality control inspections on the end result. It has been 
determined by staff that contracting could be beneficial on some type of on call, as needed basis 
for specific maintenance work. 

Public employment typically comes with it a stability in employment, living wage total 
compensation, retirement packages and some work flexibilities. Since the beginning of the 
district we have operated more as a landscape maintenance private business versus services 
provided by a public agency. It is unclear to management whether simple adjustments in salary 
will solve our turnover problems, and whether the employees we attract would stay longer with a 
different benefit and employment package overall. There are very qualified professional 
consultants that can evaluate our job descriptions and responsibilities, our labor market and 
similar agencies to which we compare from an employment responsibility perspective; and can 
determine if offering a living wage in terms of total compensation would likely result in long 
term employees. This classification and compensation evaluation will at minimum identify the 
total compensation package offered by competitor local public agencies, such as city/park and 
recreation/mosquito control, park maintenance workers and pesticide applicators.  

Since its formation in 1995, the district has not completed a formal classification and 
competition study. Not that it is absolutely necessary with our small size, but through the process 
we can ensure that we are structured to be an efficient and attractive employer in the labor 
market, and have the data to make informed decisions. At this time, we seek input and direction 
from the board.   



Employee Classification 2020-21 2021-22 (Step 1) (Step 2) (Step 3) (Step 4)
            

General Manager 1 1 (A) $70,350
Maintenance Manager 1 1 (A) $80,638 $84,670 $88,903 $93,348

Maintenance Supervisor 1 1 (A) $57,597 $60,477 $63,501 $66,676
Landscape Maint. II 2 2 (H) $18.21 $19.12 $20.08 $21.08
Landscape Maint. I 3 3 (H) $17.37 $18.24 $19.15 $20.11

(1) Part-Time Maint.   I 0 0 (H) (PT) $16.66 n/a n/a n/a
Office Manager 1 1 (PT) $35.90 $37.70 $39.59 $41.56

(A)=Annual Salary     (H)=Hourly       (PT) - Part time     * Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) 1.80%

Other
(2) Directors (Elected) 5 5 $100 per Board Meeting Attended

BENEFITS

Full time employees receive 7 paid Holidays per year.

Health Insurance Benefits are provided to the following Employee Classifications after completion of 90 days full time 
employment with the District; 1) Maintenance Manager, 2) Maintenance Supervisor, 3) Maintenance II and 4) 
Maintenance I. The District does not pay for Health Insurance Coverage for 1) Employee Dependants, 2) Directors, or 
3) P Ti E l
Hourly Employee Vacation and Sick Leave benefits are accrued at the end of each month at a rate of $6.67 to a 
maximum of 120 hours, and $5.87 to a maximum of 60 hours, respectively.  

Part time Employee Sick Leave Benefits are accrued at a rate of 1 hour per 30 hours worked.  No vacation pay is 
accrued for employees classified as part time. 

COPPER VALLEY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FY 2021/22 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION & SALARY SCHEDULE

(1) The Part-Time Maintenance I position is filled only when necessary to provide an adequate level of service during times when full time 
positions are vacant.

(2) Saddle Creek CSD meets on the third Tuesday of each month. Directors receive a stipend of $100 for attending the meeting. Directors who 
miss a meeting are not compensated. The annual stipend for a director who attends all CSD meetings is $1,200.  Paid in December.

Upon completion of each full calandar year of employment with the District in the position of Maintenance Supervisor, 
the District provides a $3,000 Bonus to be deposited as an IRA contribution. This benefit is paid during the month of 
January in the year following each full calendar year of employment. All payroll costs associated with this benefit are 
borne by the District.

Upon completion of each full calandar year of employment with the District in the position of Maintenance Manager, the 
District provides a $3,500 allocation to be deposited as an IRA contribution. This benefit is paid during the month of 
January in the year following each full calendar year of employment. All payroll costs associated with this benefit are 
borne by the District.


